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what's going on, think about what I presented, think
about the facts, everything that I've stated inside
of my situation. Think about how I was not really,
you know, able to exercise my -- or live within the
constitution. I was not able to say certain things.
I was not able to bring up certain things. I was not
able to show y'all certain things without having to
check in with people who was going to make me give
50, S0 many reasons ¢of why this, you know, should be
presented. ZExtensive amounts of reasons why I should
present this. I got to argue, you know, go to —--
just do -- go out my way to be able to present things
that, you know, I was referring to related to my
situation. The State, they just -- yeah, this is
this. This is that. This is that. Every objection
I made, everything I made was completely disregarded.
Like I said, I haven't been able to live within
my constitution. Multiple reasons. You know, First
Amendment, Fourth Amendment, Fifth Amendment, 14th
Amendment. Every last one of my constitutional
rights has been, you know, suppressed or silenced.
So everything that I have that I can present to y'all
today is, you know, everything that I have. I don't
have -- I presented the law. I presented rulings of

higher courts, which is higher than these courts.
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The Supreme Court, which are the ones who actually
make and create laws, have stated that just because
mere proximity or presence of a gun and drugs
together —-- The State still has the burden of proof
to connect these items together and say that they
were used together.

Without somebody being able to testify and say
yeah, look, on this day, I went and purchased some
drugs from Mr.~Kennedy and he had an AR-15 rifle on
the table. Somebody actually testify and say that,
how could you connect drugs to guns? So possession
of a weapon during the commission of a viclent crime,
I should not be found guilty for. I mean, it's just
-~ according to the law and according to what I've
stated about the law, I don't know what The State
plans to introduce, but everything I stated about the
law is verbatim. Word for word. Down to the cecal,
down to the breakdown.

As far as trafficking knowledge, I didn't ever
claim to have knowledge of methamphetamine, heroin or
Carfentanil. Knowledge —-- possession with intent to
distribute, without somebody here present to say that
on this date, I purchased drugs from Mr.~Kennedy or
numerous people here to say so oh, yeah, I purchased

drugs from Mr.~Kennedy. He's also charged with




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

469

503

distribution of these drugs. We have evidence to
prove that he engaged in this distribution of
narcotics. You cannot prove that the possession of
anything was used for a specific reason. There's no
way to prove that. You have no way to prove that
besides what you believe and what you think and your
assertions based on non-illegal items.

Hydraulic press, not illegal. A blender 1s not
illegal. Scales are not illegal. Not only are they
not illegal, these officers failed to test these
items to see okay, well, let's see if there's drug
residue on there. If somebody was making bricks of
cocaine, I don't see anything white on this. I see
dirt on it. I see brown stuff,'just like dirt. If I
was --

Could I grab this? I don't know if I can move
—— can I grab this and move this?

THE COURT: As long as it doesn't mess 1t up.

MR. KENNEDY: As you can see, there's nothing --
there's no type of white substance that would match
what they were saying would be used for that. 5o to
say that was used to do whatever with drugs, there's
no residue. There's nothing on it.

So to say that household regular item, which

were —-- they were not tested. Anything could have
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been placed there at the time. The blender, these
are household -- to say that oh, yeah, he sells drugs
because these items are normally used by people who
sell drugs. 1It's not -- The State did not meet its
burden to prove that I possessed —- knowingly
possessed illegal substance with the intentions of
trafficking, you know, to distribute, manufacture,
sell -- manufacture and sell go hand-in-hand
together. So manufacture, sell is like make a sell
for, you know, U.S. currency. The State has no
burden of proof.

The only way that The State or anybody could
prove that I possess something with the intentions to
distribute it is if somebody was here to say hey,
look, on this date, you know, I'm a confidential
informant or -- ox, at least, even being charged with
a distribution. Or say that I bought drugs from
Mr.~Kennedy. Then that would give you probable
reason to believe, okay, well, you got somebody here
saying that they bought drugs from you and you got
caught with drug, yeah, you use those drugs to sell.
But to say based on my knowledge and experience and
training, just because you have these types of items
that they're used to sell narcotics. I mean, to find

me guilty, The State has not met its burden to fit
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the two elements of trafficking, which is knowingly
possessing and possession with intent to distribute,
manufacture, sell, anything of that nature.

Like I say, once again, I'm not going to hold
y'all up. I appreciate just, you know, the duty that
y'all -— the diligent that y'all serve, you know, by,
at least, listening to my situation and my
circumstances. But to find me guilty of these
offenses would be -- it would be wrong. It would be
wrong for my peers to find me guilty for something
I've already, you know, proven based on law and
proven the ill intention and motive of officers who
are upset with me for some reason. You know, I've
got a record. They can probably -- they pull me
over, they can see my record. I got a record. I've
been charged with offenses that have been dismissed
against me.

Because Greenville County believes that whenever
somebody says something, that's what it is, that's
how they operate. They arrest you and lock you up.
So they probably look at me like a person like oh,
this individual, he's gotten away with something
before. We going to get him. ©Or oh, yeah, we almost
had him that night, he had to have something. We

couldn't find it. He had a large amount of money.
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We know he's a drug dealer, let's go in his house
illegally. And guess what, if we don't find what
we're looking for, this is what we going to do. We
going to place whatever we want to place there. Me
claiming oh, yeah, whatever you find is mine and it
is what it is.

I know what you going to find. You're going to
find marijuana and you're going to find firearms. I
claimed it. It is what it is. I was confident.
That's why I was like, man, you know, all right, do
your thing. But if I knew that was there, automatic,
I be like, man, I don't know -- ain't nothing, I
don't know, you know what I'm saying? I claim
anything illegal because, you know, not only did I
want my girlfriend to get involved in anything
because she didn't have a record, but I didn't want
them to charge her with illegally possessing a
firearm or anything of that nature, marijuana,
anything because she has children. So, of course,
I'm going to be a man and I'll be like, that's mine.

But if I knew that this was going to be put
there or this was there, man, lock, there's no way.
There's no way. I den't know nothing about this.
They put it there, that's what happened. But me not

knowing what's going on in the circumstances, that's
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why he was on body cam when I saild some weed. I'm
like some weed, man. That's the only thing to my
knowledge that I possessed. Everything else was put
there by these individuals.

I mean, I don't know what else I can do to prove
to you, you kncw, I been victimized. You know, my
constitutional rights haven't been honored or
respected and I don't know what else to do. The only
thing I can do is appreciate y'all for listening and
the ones who actually going to, you know, use
individuality to make their own determination and
decision based on what I presented. And everything
that has been presented by me and The State, just,
you know, fair probability and just, you know,
logical, just common sense. Keép in mind that what
happens, there are a lot of instances where law
enforcement do wrong things.

Law enforcement don't get held accountable for a
lot things they do because that badge makes them feel
that they're above the law. Sc by them feeling that
they're above the law, they feel like oh, this is a
black man, he's like 27. He don't know nothing about
the law. We fixing to violate his rights. We fixing
to go in his house. We fixing to get him because we

feel like he got away from us the first time. And
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that's what happened. That's why that officer stated
that, do you remember me? Which these officers never
brought up. They all friends. I mean, they can say
they don't do whatever, they all drink coffee, they
do whatever they do. They maybe associate outside of
work, I don't know what they do, but they all know
each other. B&nd all this comes from, yocu know, me
being targeted by Officer Lapek, who was not here.
These officers testified that she was present, but
she's not here. Her name 1s on the incident report
where I was pulled over days before. Other officers
were there, it was five or six of them. Matter of
fact, every officer that's part of the CRT was there
and responded to my knowledge. They the ones that I
opserved on camera.

I have nothing else to say to the jury.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Grounsell.

CLOSING STATEMENT

MR. GROUNSELL: 1I'll try to be brief. I told
you at the beginning of the trial, Mr.~Kennedy chose
to represent himself and that's still the case. I
also told you there would be times -- that there's
rules of the court, courtroom procedure and there's
rules of evidence and that Mr.~Kennedy probably would

not be familiar with those and there would be times
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that I would have to object. And that's exactly what
T did. T have to hold him to the same standard I
would hold a defense attorney. And that was his
choice and that's how we moved forward with this
case.

Two, The Judge, he is the arbiter of the law in
this courtroom. Anything that Mr.~Kennedy just read,
the case law, is not the law of this courtroom.
Whatever Judge Morgan gives you, that is what we're
following. The operative word in the indictment that
he wants to allege has to show manufacturing,
distribution and selling, in between each one of
these things, there's the word or. Knowingly sell,
manufacture, deliver or bring into the State of Scouth
Carolina or did knowingly provide financial
assistance or otherwise aid, abet, attempt or
conspire to sell, manufacture, deliver or bring into
the state., B&And, finally, or was knowingly in actual
or censtructive possession of 28 grams or more, but
less than 100 grams of methamphetamine, or was
knowingly in actual or constructive possession of 14
grams up to 28 grams of heroin. It's only about
showing constructive possessicn. The State doesn't
have any other burden than that.

Four, we've already talked about the marijuana
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that was alongside the heroin and the meth in the
car. And, also, the marijuana was found right in
front of the bag of drugs that was on the window
sill. So him trying to explain conveniently that the
only thing that he's going to own up is marijuana is
sort of ridiculcus.

Fifth thing, the testimony was clear where this
glove was found. This glove was found in that bag
with the rest of the dope. It was photographed as
soon as it was taken out and we know that from the
pictures that we have in front of us. And that the
officers testified as to how the search warrant is
taken place, things are photographed in place and
when something is opened, it's immediately
photographed after.

Now, it seems that Mr.~Kennedy is upset with
people that didn't have body cams, but he alsc seems
to be upset with people who do have body cams. He's
not going to be satisfied regardless of what we give
him. Onto the previous traffic stop. We don't know
anything about that traffic stop. The State doesn't
know anything about that traffic stop, but it has
nothing to do with this case at hand. There's been
no testimony to that from anybody. The officers in

here who have testified don't have any knowledge
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about what Mr.~Kennedy is talking about. And he says
that he was a victim of police brutality, but from
his own admission, even if that story was true, he
wasn't arrested and he said no money was seized. It
sounds like he got to go home'afterwards.

These baseless allegations against law
enforcement here today absent any proof is
infuriating. You have two different places that were
searched by two different officers who are part of
two different agencies. To pretend that the
corruption of our law enforcement in Greenville
County is that corrupt is absurd and it's ridiculous.
It's offensive to these pecple who risk their lives
everyday for us out in our community and it's
ridiculous to hear that in this courtroom. I hope
that you can see through his hollow arguments and
that you return a verdict of guilty. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen,
befeore I charge you the law, let's take a little
restroom break. We've been going at it a little bit.
Some of you may want to take Jjust a quick restroom
break. So I'm going to excuse you to do that. 1It's
not going to be a long break, just a little short
one. Stretch your legs and use the restroom, then

I'll bring you back out here and instruct you on the
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law.

(WHEREUPON, the jury left open court at

approximately 1:27 p.m.)

THE COURT: 2all right, we'll be in recess, I'll
come back and charge the law.

(WHEREUPON, a short break was taken.)

(WHEREUPON, the jury entered open court at

approximately 1:34 p.m.)

JURY CHARGE

THE COURT: 2all right, ladies and gentlemen, we
have now reached that part of the trial; which is the
last part before you deliberate on the case. And
that is my job of charging you the law in the case.
And let me preface it by saying that the law in the
case 1is derived from our appellate courts. That
includes the Scuth Carolina Court of Appeals and the
Scuth Careolina Supreme Court, as well as our
legislature, among other courts. So that is where
the law comes from. This is not my law. My Jjob and
responsibility as the trial judge is to instruct vou
on what the law is here in South Carclina. So with
that in mind, again, this is not my law that I have
created, I'm simply instructing you on what the law
is in South Carolina.

All right, in this case, the indictments charge
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the Defendant with the following, trafficking
methamphetamine, trafficking heroin, possession of a
controlled substance with intent to distribute and
three indictments for possession of a weapon during
the commission ¢f a violent crime.

I remind you that the fact The Defendant was
arrested, charged and indicted in this case is not
evidence and cannot be considered by you as evidence
of guilt in this case, nor does it create any
presumption of inference of guilt. These documents
are simply the formal written instruments which
contain the charges made against The Defendant. They
are the formal documents by which this case is
brought into court before you here today.

I want to remind you that during this trial, you
and I have had certain duties to perform. BAs the
trial Judge, it is my respconsibility to preside over
the trial of this case. And I also have the duty to
rule on the admissibility of the evidence offered
during the trial. You are to consider only the
competent evidence before you. If there was any
testimony ordered stricken from the record in this
case during this trial, you must disregard that
testimony. You are to consider only the testimony

which has been presented from the witness stand and




514

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

480

any exhibits which may have been part of the record
in this case.

I have the additional duty to charge you the law
applicable to this case. As the presiding Judge, I
am the sole judge of the law of this case and it is
your duty as jurors to accept and apply the law as I
now state it to you. If you already have any idea as
to what the law is or what the law ought to be and it
does not agree with what I now tell you, then you
must abandon this idea because you are sworn to
accept the law and apply the law exactly as I state
it to you.

In every case tried in this court before a jury,
the jury becomes the sole and exclusive judge of the
facts. A trial judge cannot state, comment on or
make any statement to the jury about the facts in a
case. Since you, the jury, are the sole judges of
the facts in this case, you are not to infer from
what I have said during the progress of this trial in
ruling upon the admissibility of evidence or
otherwise or anything that I say now during this
instruction to you that I have any opinion about the
facts in this case. The law does not allow me to
have an opinion about the facts. This is a matter

solely for you, the jury, to determine. As jurors,
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it is your duty to determine the effect, the value
and weight of evidence presented during the trial.
And because the law does not allow me to have any
opinion on the facts, I do not.

The indictments in this case, as I have stated
previously, there are six indictments for each of the
ones I have previcusly mentioned. Each of these
indictments is a separate and distinct offense. You
must decide each indictment separately on the
evidence and the law applicable to it uninfluenced by
your decision as to any other indictment. The
Defendant may be convicted or acquitted on any or all
of the offenses charged. You will be asked toc write
a separate verdict of guilty or not guilty for each
indictment. And I will explain that to you when I go
cver the verdict form at the end of my charge here.

Now, The Defendant has pled not guilty to these
indictments. &And that plea puts the burden on The
State to prove The Defendant guilty. A person
charged with committing a criminal offense in South
Carolina is never required to prove himself innocent.
I charge you that it is an important rule of law that
a defendant in a criminal trial, no matter what the
sericusness cf the charge may be, will always be

presumed to be innocent of the crime for which the
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indictments were issued unless guilt has been proven
by evidence satisfying you of that guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt.

This presumption of innocence does nct end when
you begin your deliberations, but it accompanies the
Defendant throughout his trial until you reach a
verdict of guilt based on the evidence satisfying you
of that guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. The
presumption of innocence is just like a robe of
righteousness placed about the shoulders of The
Defendant, which remains with The Defendant until it
has been stripped from The Defendant by evidence
satisfying you of The Defendant's guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt. The presumption of innocence is
not merely legal thecry, it is not just a legal
phrase, it is a substantial right to which every
defendant is entitled unless you, the jury, are
satisfied from the evidence of the Defendant's guilt
beyond a reascnable doubt.

The State has the burden of proving The
Defendant guilty beyond a reascnable doubt. Some of
you may have served as Jjurors in civil cases where
you were told that it 1s only necessary tc prove that
a fact is more likely true than not true, such as by

the greater weight of the evidence or by a
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preponderance of the evidence.

Proof beyond a reasonable doubt is proof that
leaves you firmly convinced of the Defendant's guilt.
There are very few things in this world that we know
with absolute certainty. In criminal law -- or in
criminal cases, the law does not require proof that
overcomes every possible doubt. If based on your
consideration of the evidence, you are firmly‘
convinced that The Defendant is guilty of the crimes
charged, you must find the Defendant guilty. If on
the other hand, you think there is a real possibility
that The Defendant is not guilty, you must give The
Defendant the benefit of the doubt and find him not
guilty.

The following things are not evidence and you
must not consider them as evidence in deciding the
facts of this case. Any statements and arguments of
the parties in the case, any questions and objections
of the parties, or testimony that I have instructed
you to disregard.

There are two types of evidence which are
generally presented during a trial. Direct evidence
and circumstantial evidence. Direct evidence
directly proves the existence of a fact and does not

require deduction. Circumstantial evidence is proof
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of a chain of facts and circumstances indicating the
existence of a fact. Crimes may be proven by
circgmstantial evidence. The law makes no
distinction between the weight or value to be given
to either direct or circumstantial evidence.
However, to the extent The State relies on
circumstantial evidence, all of the circumstances
must be consistent with each other and when taken
together, point conclusively to the guilt of the
accused beyond a reasonable doubt. If these
circumstances ——- or if these circumstances merely
portray the Defendant's behavior as suspicious, the
proof has failed. The State has the burden of
proving the Defendant guilty beyond a reascnable
doubt. And this burden rests with The State
regardless of whether The state relies on direct
evidence, circumstantial evidence or some combination
of both.

Necessarily, during this trial, you must
determine credibility of witnesses who have testified
in this case. Credibility simply means
believability. It becomes your duty, as jurors, to
analyze and to evaluate the evidence. 1In determining
the believability of witnesses who have testified in

this case, you may believe one witness over several
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witnesses or several witnesses over one witness. You
may believe a part of the testimony of a witness and
reject the remaining part of the testimony of that
same witness. You may believe the testimony of a
'witness in its entirety or reject the testimony of a
witness in its entirety. You may consider whether
any witness has exhibited to you any interest, bias,
prejudice or other motive in this case. You may also
consider the appearance and manner of a witness while
on the witness stand.

The rules of evidence ordinarily do not permit
witnesses to testify to opinions or conclusions. An
exception to this rule exist for witnesses we call
expert witnesses. A witness who by education and
experience has become expert in some art, science,
profession or calling -- any expert who has become an
expert in some art, science, profession or calling
may state an opinion as to any relevant and material
matters in which the witness claims to be a expert.
They may also state the reasons for the opinion.

You should consider any expert opinion received
as evidence in this case just like any other evidence
and give it the weight you think it deserves. 1If you
decide that the opinion of an expert witness is not

based on sufficient education and experience or if
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you conclude that the reasons given in support of the
opinion are not sound or that the opinion is
outweighed by other evidence, you may disregard the
opinion entirely. An expert witness' testimony is to
be.given noc greater weight than that of other
witnesses simply because the witness is a expert.
Further, you'ré not required to accept an expert's
opinion even though it is not contradicted.

I instruct you and emphasize that the fact that
The Defendant in this case did not testify and is not
a factor to be considered by you in any way in your
deliberations and in your consideration on the
guestion of guilt or innocence of The Defendant. It
must be not be considered by you in any manner
whatsoever. A defendant has the constitutional right
to remain silent. And the assertion of this right
must not be considered by you in deliberations.

I repeat, under your ocath, you're to draw no
conclusion whatsoever from the fact that The
Defendant in this case did not testify. The fact
that this Defendant did not testify should not be
even discussed in the jury room. The burden of
proof, as I have stated to you, is on The State. The
Defendant is not required to prove his innocence.

The burden of proof remains on The State to prove
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guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.

The statement or statements alleged tc have been
made by the Defendant in this case has been admitted
intc evidence. The Court has determined that the
stateﬁents are admissible. I instruct you that you
make the ultimate decision of whether or not The
Defendant made the statement. TIf The Defendant did
make the statement, you must determine whether the
statement was made by The Defendant voluntarily and
of his own freewill. This means that the statement
was not caused by pressure, force, fear, threats,
coercion or intimidation or by hope or promise of
leniency or reward of any kind.

In determiﬁing whether the statement was
voluntary, you should consider both the
characteristics of The Defendant and the details of
the questioning. Some of the factors that you must
consider are the age of The Defendant, The
Defendant's education or lack of education, The
Defendant's mental ability or capacity, The
Defendant's intelligence or IQ, The Defendant's
background and envircnment, the place and length of
detention, the nature of the questiconing and the
advice or lack therecf to The Defendant of his

constitutional rights. Including but not limited to
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the right to remain silent, that any statement could
be used against him in a court of law, the right to
have a lawyer present, that if he could not afford a
lawyer, a lawyer would be appointed to represent him
without ény costs and that he could stop making a
statement at any time.

You must carefully consider all the surrounding
circumstances before you give any weight to any
alleged statement. The State has the burden, as I've
said, of proving beyond a reasonable doubt that the
statement was voluntary. If you determine it was,
you may give the statement -- you may give the
statement any further consideration you deem proper.
You must decide what weight, if any, should ke given
to the alleged statements. If you determine the
alleged statements were not free and voluntary
statements of The Defendant, you should not consider
the statements at all.

In order to establish criminal liakility,
criminal intent is required. For example, the mental
state required to be proven by The State of a
particular crime might be purpose, intent, knowledge,
recklessness or criminal negligence. Criminal intent
must be proven by The State beyond a reasonable

doubt. Criminal intent is always a matter that must
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be determined by the jury from the circumstances
surrounding the situation.

There's no way to prove intent to a mathematical
certainty. There's no way medical science can
dissect a pérson's brain and determine what the
person had in mind. So the law says that criminal
intent may be inferred from the circumstances shown
to have existed. This is how you make a
determination of whether or not the element requiring
intent was present. It is not necessary to establish
intent by direct and positive evidence. But intent
may be established by inference in the same way as
any other fact by taking into consideration the acts
of the parties and all of the facts and circumstances
of the case.

Criminal intent is a mental state, a conscious
wrongdoing. It is up to you to determine what The
Defendant intended to do, based on the circumstances
shown to have existed. Criminal intent can arise
from action or a failure to act. It may arise from
negligence, recklessness or an indifference to duty
or to consequences that is considered by the law to
be the equivalent of criminal intent.

The Defendant is charged with trafficking

methamphetamine. The State must prove beyond a
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reasonable doubt that The Defendant knowingly sold,
manufactured, cultivated, delivered, purchased,
brought intoc the state, provided financial assistance
or otherwise, aided, abetted, attempted or conspired
to sell, manufécture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or
bring into this state and was knowingly in actual or
constructive possession. Knowingly attempted --
knowingly attempted to become in actual or
constructive possession of methamphetamine.

The State must also prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that the amount of methamphetamine was more
than 28 grams, but less than 100 grams. To have
possession, The State must prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that The Defendant had both the pewer and the
intent to control the disposition or use of the
methamphetamine.

Possession may be either actual or constructive.
Actual possession means that the methamphetamine was
in the actual physical custody of the Defendant.
Constructive possession means that the Defendant had
dominion contrel or the right to exercise dominion or
control over either the methamphetamine itself or the
property on which the methamphetamine was found.

Mere presence at the scene where the drugs were found

is not enough to prove possession. The Defendant's
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knowledge and possession may be inferred when the
substance is found on the property under the
Defendant's control. However, this inference is
simply an evidentiary fact to be taken into
consideration by &ou, along with the other evidence
in the case and to be given the weight you decide it
should have. When determining the weight of a
controlled substance or drug, the weight of any drug
or controlled substance referenced is the weight of
that substance in pure form or a compound or a
mixture thereof.

The Defendant is charged with trafficking
heroin. The State must prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that The Defendant knowingly sold,
manufactured, cultivated, delivered, purchased,
brought into the state, provided financial assistance
or otherwise aided, abetted, attempted or conspired
to sell, manufacture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or
bring into the state and was knowingly in actual or
constructive possession and knowingly attempted to be
in actual or constructive possession of heroin. The
State must also prove beyond a reasonable doubt that
the amount of hercin was 14 grams or more, but less
than 10 grams.

I have previously defined for you what direct --
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I mean, excuse me, actual and constructive
possession. And the same definition applied that
I've just instructed you of what actual and
constructive possession is for the methamphetamine
also applies to the heroin.

2gain, I have also told you that when
determining the weight of a controlled substance, the
weight of any controlled substance or drug, is the
weight of that substance or drug in pure form or in
compound or mixture thereof.

The Defendant is charged with possession with
intent to distribute Carfentanil. The State must
prove beyond a reascnable doubt that The Defendant
possessed Carfentanil with the intent to distribute.
Again, I have defined for you what actual and
constructive possession is. The same definition
applies here.

The State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt
that The Defendant intended to distribute
Carfentanil. Distribute means to deliver, other than
by administering or dispensing a drug. Intent may be
shown by acts and conduct of the Defendant and other
circumstances from which you may naturally and
reasonably infer intent.

In determining whether The Defendant had the
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intent to distribute Carfentanil, you may consider
the circumstances surrounding the Defendant's alleged
possession. You may consider the amount of the
substance to alleged to have been possessed, the
manner in which it was éllegedly possessed, the place
where it was allegedly possessed and any other
factors that you consider to be important. You must
find that The Defendant did not intend to have the
Carfentanil solely for his own use.

The Defendant has also been charged under three
indictments with possession of a weapon during the
commission of or attempt to commit a violent crime.
He is charged with possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent qrime. The State must prove
beyond a reasonable doubt that The Defendant was in
possession of a firearm or visibly displayed what
appeared to be a firearm during the commission of a
violent crime. A firearm means any machine gun,
automatic rifle, revolver, pistol or any weapon which
will or is designed to or may be readily converted to
expel a projectile.

In order to find The Defendant guilty of
possession of a weapon during the commission of a
violent crime, you must first find The Defendant

guilty of either committing a violent crime or
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attempting to commit a violent crime. Under the law,
trafficking heroin is a violent crime. The State
must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the weapon
furthered, advanced or helped in the commission of
the crime.

Ladies and gentlemen, a verdict in this case
cannct be pased upon sympathy, passion, prejudice or
emotion or some other consideration not found in the
evidence before you.

Let me say something about deliberations.
Deliberations has often been defined as careful
consideration weighing up with a view to a decision.
The genius of our jury system, ladies and gentlemen,
is that it allows 12 good men and woman from 12
different backgrounds, life eXperiences and
perspectives to consider the evidence in this case,
to talk about the evidence in this case and to,
ultimately, reach a verdict.

We call them deliberations for a reason. You
are to consider the evidence in this case carefully
and deliberately and discuss it in a calm, thorough
and courteous manner. Remember, you are not
partisans or advocates for either side. You don't
favor one side over the other. You are judges of the

facts. Listen to the views of all of your fellow
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jurors, consider other people's points of view and
talk through and discuss the evidence. And remember,
if you are doing something deliberately, you're not
in a big hurry. 2and you should not be in a big hurry
here. This case is very impértant to both The State
and to Mr.~Kennedy and this is their only day in
court.

When you retire to the jury room, you should
discuss the case with your fellow jurors and reach an
agreement if you can do so. Your verdict must be
unanimous. All 12 of you must reach the verdict.
Each of you must decide the case for yourself, but
you should do so only after you have impartially
considered all the evidence, discussed it fully with
the other jurors and listened to the views of your
fellow jurors. Do not be afraid to change your
opinion if the discussion persuades you and do not
come to a decision simply because other jurors think
it is right. It is important that you attempt to
reach a unanimous verdict, but, of course, only 1if
each of you can do so after having made your own
decision. Do not change an honest belief about the
weight and effect of the evidence simply to reach a
verdict. In other words, do not change your opinion

solely for the sake of reaching a unanimous verdict.
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All right. There are two possible verdicts
which you may find in this case, guilty or not
guilty.

Mr. Preston, would you give a copy of that to
Madam Forelady? Thank you.

All right, Madam Forelady, a copy of the verdict
form is before you. You will see that it sets out
each of the six indictments. And under each
indictment, you will see guilty or not guilty. Let
me tell you this, there is no particular order of why
guilty is first or not guilty. Do not consider that.
Do not take that into consideration. It has to be
one or the other. That is solely why it is there.

%0 under the first —- paragraph number one, as
to the charge of trafficking methamphetamine, we, the
jury, unanimously find The Defendant, Michael Justin
Kennedy, and you will check one of those boxes.

And that will be the same for the next one,
trafficking heroin, for the next one, possession of a
controlled substance with intent to distribute, and
then the three separate indictments, all the same
charge, but three separate indictments for three
different weapons. And I have set out the indictment
numbers for each one of those. And you will check

the appropriate places on those. So once you -— the
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jury has reached a verdict, if you have come to a
unanimous decision, then you will sign right there,
the foreperson, knock on the door and let the
bailiffs know that you have reached a verdict.

Now, I'm going to send you to.your room right
now, jury room right now. I've got to just make sure
from the parties fhat I have instructed you properly.
They will let me know. If I have not, I may have to
bring you back in here. But if I don't, I will then
send wofd to the bailiffs to let you know that you
are ready to begin deliberations and we will provide
the evidence for you and bring it back to the jury
room.

We have ordered lunch. I hope all of you have
ordered lunch, so that should be coming to you,
hopefully, shortly here. So I'm going to excuse you
for now and if there are no exceptions, then I will
give word to you that you are free to start
deliberating. Thank you.

(WHEREUPON, the jury left open court at

approximately 2:03 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right, exception from The State?

MR. GROUNSELL: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any exXception from The Defendant?

MR. KENNEDY: No, sir.
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THE COURT: All right. 2ll right, if y'all
would check, make sure that we got all the evidence
here. Now, as far as the weapons, is there any ammo
up there?

MR. GROUﬁSELL: No, ammo in the Box with each
one.

THE COURT: All right, I want you take the ammo
out of the boxes.

MR. GROUNSELL: Okay.

THE COURT: Send weapons back there. If they
want the see the ammo then we can send that back
there and bring back the weapons. I don't want the
weapon and the amme back there at the same time.
Y'all make sure, start compiling, get the exhibits,
make sure everything is there so we can send it back
to them.

Mr.,~Kennedy, you're free to look, make sure that
evidence is there, whatever you want to do.

MR. KENNEDY: Your Honor, can I get a copy from
the orders or the motions that you denied on my case?

THE COURT: Copies of the orders?

MR. KENNEDY: Yeah, you know, the motions that
were denied, the motion to suppress, moticon from the
first hearing, motion in limine.

THE COURT: That is an oral -- it's in court --
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the court reporter takes down everything. All of
your arguments that were made are on the record and
you're protected. It has the arguments you made and
the rulings that were made on it. 8o it's taken down
by the court reporter. There's nothing - there's no
paper document.

MR. GROUNSELL: Your Honor, on the instructions,
I believe on the heroin, you said 14 to 100 grams. I
don't know if that —-- should say 14 to 28. You may
have just misread that.

THE CQURT: What do you think I read?

MR. GROUNSELL: You said 14 to 100 grams. It
might have been because you had just read the
methamphetamine 28 to 100.

THE COURT: &ll right.

MR. GROUNSELL: I just want to make sure the
actual instructions were correct on the paper.

THE COURT: Well, I tell you what I'm going to
do. I probably did say 100 grams, so I think I need
~— it's 14 -- all right, I think I'm going to bring
them in and clarify that it's got to be between 14
grams less that 28 grams.

MR. GROUNSELL: Thank you, Your Honor. That's
the only thing I caught.

THE COURT: All right.
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{(WHEREUPCN, the jury entered open court at

approximately 2:15 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, I
just need to correct one thing. I charged you on
trafficking methamphetamine, The S5tate must.also
prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the amount of
methamphetamine was more than 28 grams, but less than
100 grams. As far as the heroin, the trafficking
heroin, The State must prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that the amocunt of the hercin was 14 grams or
more, but less than 28 grams. I had previously said
100 grams on the heroin. But the heroin is 14 grams
or mcre, but less than 28 grams and the
methamphetamine is more than 28 grams, but less than
100 grams. So that's the only change. And you are
free to deliberate.

The alternate weould please stay with us, if you
stay right there.

I'1l excuse the 12 and you may begin your
deliberations.

(WHEREUPON, the jury left open court and began

deliberations at approximately 2:16 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right, sir, well, you're now
excused from this trial. Unfortunately, or maybe

fortunately, whichever way you are lcoking at it, you
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will not be deliberating, you're not able to
deliberate. But you have been a very important part
in this case because, oftentimes, a juror may —— we
may have to excuse a juror, so an alternate is
extremely important. In those situations, we have to
substitute. That could have happened in this case if
we had to excuse a juror and we may have had to
substitute you. So -- but nobody was excused and
those first 12, our jury, have remained here for the
trial, so, therefore, you will, unfortunately, not
get an opportunity to deliberate.

T will excuse you for the day. You are free to
go for the rest of the day. 1If you will report back
tomorrow morning to the jury room. If you would be
thére —-—

Have y'all been reporting at 9:0C in the
morning? WNot this trial, but --

THE CLERK: 9:15, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 9:15. If you would report back
downstairs tomorrow morning at 9:15. All right,
thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Okay, thank you.

THE COURT: 211 right, be in recess until a
verdict.

(WHEREUPON, court was in recess awaiting a
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verdict.)

THE COURT: All right, we have a question from
the jury. The jury question i1s, Can we have the body
camera footage?

So we've got a laptop right there, I believe;
that we can send in there. They've got the disks.

So we can send that in there with them to view the
footage.

All right. Anything from The State?

MR. GROUNSELL: Got no issue with that.

THE COURT: Anything from The Defendant?

MR. KENNEDY: ©No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Take it on in there.
Thank you.

We'll be in recess.

(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit No. 2 marked for

identification.)

(WHEREUPON, court was in recess awaiting a

Averdict.)

THE COURT: All right, question from the Jjury
is, If we find him guilty of the drug charges, by law
is he by default guilty of the charges four through
six? And those are the possession of a weapon during
the commission of a violent crime.

Mr. Grounsell?
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MR. GROUNSELL: Your Honor, I don't believe so.
They're all separate matters.

THE COURT: All right. So we can do one or two
things —-

Mr.~Kennedy, do you have any response? Did you-
understand what their question was?

THE CLERK: No, I don't understand.

THE COURT: all right. Says, If we find him
guilty of drug charges, by law is he by default
guilty of the charges four through six? And those
are the possession of a weapon during the commission
of a viclent crime.

So what they're asking is if they were to find
you guilty -- they have not found you guilty, but if
they were to find you guilty of the drug charges,
does that mean you are aﬁtomatically guilty of the
gun charges? And you are not. That is the case, you
are not automatically guilty of that.

So any suggestion? My thought was just to write
back on there no.

MR. GROUNSELL: I think that suffices.

THE COURT: I can put on there no, that they
still have to —— trying to think how I can word it.

I can put no or either bring them back and recharge

them on possession of a weapon during the commission
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of a viclent crime.

Well, what does The State propose?

MR. GROUNSELL: Your Honor, simple response
would just be no. I don't think it necessarily has
to be further instruction to do that.

THE COURT: Mr.~Kennedy, do you agree? I mean,
the answer is no. You are ncot guilty by default of
those charges if they find'you guilty of the others.
So my inclination was to just write no, you were not
guilty by default. Do you have any objection to
that?

MR. KENNEDY: ©No, no, sir.

THE COURT: Is that fine with you?

Is that fine with everybody?

MR. GROUNSELL: That's fine with me.

THE COURT: All right, what I'm going to do
right now is I'm writing no, signing my name to it.

All right. All right, Mr. Preston, Mrs. Fryer,
one of y'all.

(WHEREUPON, Ccurt's Exhibit No. 3 marked for

identification.)

THE COURT: All right, we'll be in recess.

(WHEREUPON, court was in recess awaiting a

verdict.)

THE COURT: We have two questions. All right,
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first question, Is he allowed legally to have
possession of the firearms? Question number one.
Question number two, Does just having the guns in the
house act as the inference for the charge of
possession of a weapon during the acting commission
of a violent crime?

Mr. Grounsell, hear from you.

MR. GROUNSELL: Your Honor, the first one is
kind of difficult because I think Mr.~Kennedy is
lawfully prohibited from having a firearm. Legally,
they're probably not supposed to be in his house, but
for the sake of this case, I mean, that's --

THE CQURT: Mr.~Kennedy, do you have any
response?

MR. KENNEDY: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. I think what my inclination
to do is recharge them on possession of a weapon
during the commission of a violent crime. I think
that's -- I think that will answer =-- I think will
answer those questions.

So Mr.~Kennedy, do you understand what I'm
doing? I'm going to tell them the law again about
possession of a weapon during the commission of a
violent crime. Do you understand that?

MR. KENNEDY: All right.
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THE COURT: All right, let's bring them on in.
Thank you, sir —- or ma'am.

(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit No. 4 marked for

identification.)

{WHEREUPON, the jury entered open court at

aﬁproximately 3:37 p.m.)

TEE COURT: All right, Madam Forelady, I
received another two questions. First question, Is
he allowed legally to have possession of the
firearms? And gquestion number two, Does just having
the guns in the home act as the inference for the
charge of possession of a weapon during the acting
commission of a violent crime?

Did I read those guestions correctly? All
right, ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to recharge
you what the law is on this charge. So if you would
just give me your attention.

The Defendant is charged with possession of a
weapon during the commission of or attempt to commit
a viclent crime. THe State must prove beyond a
reasonable doubt that The Defendant was in possession
of a firearm or visibly displayed what appeared to be
a firearm during the commission of a violent crime.
A firearm means any machine gun, automatic rifle,

revolver, pistel or any weapon which will or is
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designed to or may be readily converted to expel a
projectile.

In order to find The Defendant guilty of
possession of a weapon during the commission of a
violent crime, you must first find The Defendant
guilty of either committing a violent crime or
attempting to commit a vioclent crime. Under the law,
trafficking heroin is a violent crime. The State
must prove beyond a reasocnable doubt that the weapon
furthered, advanced or helped in the commission of
the crime.

So I hope that answers it or helps. If it
deoesn't, Jjust simply write me another question and
we'll handle it. I hope that helped and I'll ask you
to return.

(WHEREUPON, the jury left cpen court at

appreximately 3:40 p.m. and continued

deliberations.)

THE COURT: All right, we'll be in recess until
then.

(WHEREUPON, court was 1in recess awaiting a

verdict.}

THE COURT: All right, next question is, Can we
have clarity on which firearm matches which

indictment number? Again, Can we have clarity on
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which firearm matches which indictment number?

Now, I'll hear from you, but my inclination is
to write on the note which indictment matches what.
&nd I have just -— when I got the question, I looked
at it. These are obviously guestions number four,
five, and six on the verdict form. Under question
number four 1s the indictment number
2021-G5~23-00061¢, I wrote the FN nine millimeter
handgun. Under number five, which is indictment
number 2021-GS23-00538A, I wrote Ruger AR56. And
then number six, which 2021-G8-23-0005374, the Ruger
380.

But I'll hear you, Mr. Grounsell?

MR. GROUNSELL: That's correct, Your Honor.
That's fine with me.

THE COURT: All right, Mr.~Kennedy?

(There was no response.)

THE COURT: Do you have any cobjection to me--

MR. KENNEDY: No, no, sir.

THE COURT: All right. What I'll do is I'll
write on the return note and I'll let y'all look at
it before I submit it back to them. Just give me a
minute.

(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit No. 5 marked for

identification.)
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THE COQURT: If y'all would take a look. I have
written on the question the indictment number
corresponding to the weapéns, so if you would take a
look.

(WHEREUPON, Mr. Grounsell and Mr.~Kennedy

reviewed Court's Exhibit No. 5.)

THE COURT: &ll right, both parties in
agreement? Consent to me sending this note back to
the jury?

MR. GROUNSELL: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

MR. KENNEDY: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. All right, be in recess.

(WHEREUPON, court was in recess awaiting

verdict.})

THE COURT: Understand we have a verdict.

THE BAILIFF: All right, we'll bring them in.

(WHEREUPON, the jury entered cpen court at

approximately 4:20 p.m.) |

TEE COURT: So understand you have a unanimous
verdict?

MADAM FORELADY: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right, if you would hand it to
the bailiff, please.

all right, Mr. Clerk, if you would publish the

verdict, please.
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THE CLERK: This is The State vs. Michael Justin

Kennedy, Indictment numbers 2021-G5-23-0620,
2021-GS-23-0539A, 2021-GS-23-3572, 2021-GS-23-0619,
2021-GS-230538A and 2021-GS-23-0537A. As to the
charge of trafficking methamphetamine, we, the jury,
unanimously find The Defendant, Michael Justin
Kennedy, guilty. As the charge of trafficking
heroin, we, the jury, unanimously find The Defendant,
Michael Justin Kennedy, guilty. As to the charge of
possession of a controlled substance with intent to
distribute, we, the jury, unanimously find The
Defendant, Michael Justin Kennedy, guilty. As to the
charge of possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime under indictment number
2021-G5-23-0619, we, the jury, unanimously find The
Defendant, Michael Justin Kennedy, guilty. As to the
charge of possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime under Indictment number
2021-GS-23-0538A, we, the jury, unanimously find The
Defendant, Michael Justin Kennedy, not guilty. And
as to the charge of possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime under indictment number
2021-GS-23-0537A, we, the jury, unanimously find The
Defendant, Michael Justin Kennedy, not guilty.

THE COURT: All right, from The State, any
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polling of the jury from The State?

MR. GROUNSELL: No; Your Hcnor.

THE CQURT: Any polling of the jury from The
Defense?

MR. KENNEDY: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen,
that concludes your service in this case. 1 want to
thank you for your attention and your hard work and
efforts in this case. And that will end your service
here today.

Unfortunately, I will have to ask you to come
back tomorrow. There may be another case tomcrrow,
just a small case. So if you would report to the
jury room tomorrow morning at 9:15. I'm going to let
you step back in the jury room and I'm going to come
back and speak to you in just a minute and thank you
for your service.

(WHEREUPON, the jury left open court and was

excused at approximately 4:24 p.m.)}

THE COURT: All right, we'll have sentencing.
I'm going to step back and speak with the jury and
give time on the sentencing, then we'll do
sentencing.

(WHEREUPON, a short break was taken.)

SENTENCING
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THE COURT: All right, I'll hear from The State
on sentencing. |

MR. GROUNSELL: Yes, Your Honor, Mr.~Kennedy
does have a prior record that I would like to give
you at this time. He has a 2011, burglary second
degree times two, gfand larceny. 2012, petit
larceny. 2013, autc breaking and financial
transaction card fraud and burglary second degree.
2017, auto breaking, financial transaction card
fraud. And 2018, federal charge of possession of a
firearm by a felon.

Your Honor, ocbviously, the trafficking hercin
charge carries a mandatory minimum of 25 years. That
is a substantial sentence. Obviously, Mr.~Kennedy
definitely does have a record and the fact that he
has sat here for the past couple of days and
slandered law enforcement, obviously, is not taken
lightly by The State. We will, obviously, leave it
in your discretion, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr.~Kennedy.

MR. KENNEDY: As you can see, based on my
record, Your Honor, I don't have any previous record
of any type -- of no drug offenses. And I was not
convicted of auto breaking in 2017. I don't know

what The State is referring to. I don't know what
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he's talking about.

But outside of that, you know, I understand that
trafficking heroin has a mandatory minimum of 25
yeafs. Sc it's not tco much, you know, I can ask you
to de. You know, I just deal with the appeal.

THE COURT: All right, thank you. As you
correctly stated, Mr.~Kennedy, I dc not have any
discretion on that. It is a mandatory sentence for
that charge.

A11 right, anything else from The State?

MR. GRCUNSELL: Noc, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, sentence of the Court
under 2021-GS5-23-00539A is 25 years with the
Department of Corrections. Under 2021-GS-23-00620,
the sentence of the Court is 25 years, that is to run
concurrent. Under 2021-GS-23-03572, the sentence of
the Court is 15 years. That is to run concurrent.
And finally, under 2021-GS-23-00618, the sentence of
the Court is five years. Those all three -- I mean,
all four of these will run concurrent. The Defendant
has credit --

Do we have any idea what his credit is?

MR. GROUNSELL: Yes, Your Honor, he has credit
for 698 days.

THE COURT: All right. All right, The Defendant
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has credit for 698 days.
Is there anything else?
MR. GROUNSELL: Not from The State, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right, good luck to you, sir.

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded.)
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )

I, APRIL P. HERRON, 0Official Court Reporter £for
the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the State of South
Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a truse,
accurate &nd complete Transcript of Record of the
procéedings had and evidence introduced in the trial of
the captioned case, relative te appeal, in the Court of
General Sessions for Greenville County, South Carolina, on
the 29TH day of August, 2022.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,

counsel nor interest to any party hereto.

February 15, 2023

APRIL P. HERRON, Court Reporter
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE AFFIDAVIT
Personally appeared before me, one Inv. J. McWhite

who, being duly sworn, says that there is probable cause to believe that certain property subject to seizure under provisions
of Section 17-13-140, 1976 Code of Laws of South Caroling, as amended, is jocated on the following premises in this County:

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SOUGHT
Any evidence of illegal drug sales to include any items and/or materials used in the manufacturing, packaging or distribution of

illegal drugs to include but not limited to any organic and/or synthetic opioids, cutting agents, scales, bags, containers and any
ather items related to such sales. Any US currency with sarial numbers matching Greenville County Drug Enforcement Unit
records and currency or items believed to be the actual praceeds of illegai drug sales. Any papers, records, ledgers, or account
records relating to the sale of ilegal drugs/proceeds of iilegal drug sales and any electronic devices that could be used to store
such data. Any electronic communication devices belonging to Michael Kennedy found on/in his person, vehicle, or residence(s).

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES (PERSON, PLACE OR THING)

TO BE SEARCHED
11 Century Drive, Apartment 1304, is an apartment within the Woodside Eleven Apartment complex, located on Century Drive

in Greenville, South Carolina, Apartment 1304 Is located on the third floor of the left side, of the first building on the right, when
entering the complex from Century Drive. The entry door to Apartment 1304 is white with its door hardware on the right side of .
the door, a metallic knocker in the upper center of the door, and a blue placard with the numbers *1304" displayed in white that is
situated on the adjoining wall to the right of the door when facing the door from the breezeway.

2007 Ford Mustang VIN: 1ZVFT84N075298307, registered to Michael Justin Kennedy.

Any individuals located on this property at the time of the service of this warrant.

REASON FOR AFFIANT'S BELIEF THAT THE
PROPERTY SOUGHT IS ON THE SUBJECT PREMISES

See "Attachment A"

Sworn to and Subscribed before

W& __24th  dayof September 0 _20 {f?—ﬁx/«awsv

{LS)
Signature of Affiant
Judge 4 McGee Street

Address Greenvifle, SC 29601

Phone B864-848-2151
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

AFFIDAVIT Fage __of @

Attachment A

I Investigator . McWhite, am a sworn law enforcement officer of the Greer Police Department and an Investigator assigned to
the Greenville County Multi-Jurisdictional Drug Enforcement Unit (GCMDEU), Since 2013, | have been assigned to special units
designed to investigate illegal drug and vice-related crimes. Over the course of my law enforcement career | have investigated
hundreds of criminal cases refating to the possession, distribution, and trafficking of illegal drugs. Over the span of my law
enforcement career | have received formal and professional criminal justice education degrees and certifications and have
completed numerous police training courses specializing in illegal drug investigations. These include Associata's and Bachelor's
Degrees in Criminal Justice and a Baslc Law Certification from the South Carolina Criminal Justice Academy as well as basic,
advanced, and undercover narcotics investigations courses designed for active law enforcement investigators.

Within the past month, i received a tip from a confidential informant that the subject, Michae! Justin Kennedy, was selling
heroin from and around his Greenville apartment. According to this informant, he/she has witnessed Michael Kennedy sell illegal
drugs on multiple occaslions In recent manths, | researched this subject and found him to have a criminal history which listed prior
arrests for larceny, burgiary, armed robbery, kidnapping, possessing a weapon during a violent crime, attempted murder and
possession of illegal drugs,

Within the past 72 hours, | conducted an undercover aperation wherein the subject, Michae! Justin Kennedy, distributed a
quantity of heroin to a confidential informant working under the direction and supervision of the Greenville County Multi-
Jurisdictional Drug Enforcement Unit. Prior to beginning this operation, | met with the informant at a predetermined location. The
informant and the informant's property were searched and nothing lilegal was located. | provided the informant with electronic
surveillance equipment and US currency from the GCMDEU Evidence Procurement Fund, of which the serial numbers of the biils
were recorded. While in my presence, the informant made contact with Kennedy via cellular telephone communication and the
two arranged to meet at a nearby location in order for Kennedy to sell a quantity of heroin to the informant. The informant met
with Kennedy at the prescribed location and Kennedy soid a quantity of heroin ta the informant in exchange for the money
provided by the DEU. immediately following this transaction, | met with the informant and recovered the drugs sold to him/her by
Kennedy. The suspected drugs fleld-tested positive for the presence of heroln. The Informant and his/her property were searched
agaln and nothing Hllegal was located. The Informant provided a statement of the event, which was consistent with audio and
visual survelllance, The informant was also able to positively identify Michael Kennedy as the individual who sold him/her drugs
by use of a six-person photo fine-up.

During this incident, Kennedy was observed arriving in his 2007 Ford Mustang, which Is registered to him at an old home
address. Kennedy was followed from the Incident iccation to the Woodside Eleven Apartments where he was observed parking
and entering the apartment building that contains Apartment 1304. After observing Kennedy enter the breezeway that leads to
Apartment 1304, Woodside Eleven Apartments management confirmed that Michael Justin Kennedy was the current lease holder
of Apartment 1304 as of September 7, 2020.

Based on the recent information provided by a confidential informant, and Kennedy's criminal history, | had reason to believe
that Michae! Kennedy was engaged in illegal drug activity. Based on the aforementioned undercover operation, | confirmed this
belief to be true. Based on my law enforcement training and my experience Investigating criminal drug cases, | know illegat drug
dealers to keep the items listed in the "DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SODUGHT™ section of this warrant in their homes and vehicles,
along with records of such activity on their cellular communication devices. Based on my training and experlence, { know
individuals related to the sale of illegal drugs to commonly possess illegal drugs, drug paraphernalia, and concealable weapans
on and/or about thelr persans.

ore me .
(, ‘ 20 [ M%\_——‘%’r 85
Affiant
- ( L5 %s

. S ; EM) 4 McGee 5t. Greenville, SC 29601
/ Phone B64-848-2151
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA N
2.2, Atiomey Benernd

COUNTY GF GREENVILLE SEARCH WARRANT secton 113180

ANY BONDED LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR COUNTY  OR OF THE MUNICIPALITY

OF GREENVILLE

It appearing from the attached affidavit that there are reasonable grounds to belleve that certain property subject to seizure
under provisions of Section 17-13-140, 1976 Code of Laws of South Caraling, as amended, is located on the following premises:

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES {PERSON, PLACE OR THING)
TO BE SEARCHED

11 Century Drive, Apartment 1304, is an apartment within the Woodside Eleven Apartment complex, located on Century Drive
in Greenville, South Carolina. Apartment 1304 is located on the third floor of the left side, of the first buflding on the right, when
entering the complex from Century Drive, The entry door to Apartment 1304 is white with its door hardware on the right side of
the door, a metailic knocker in the upper center of the door, and a blue placard with the numbers *1304" displayed in white that Is
sitvated on the adjoining wall to the right of the door when facing the door from the breezeway,

2007 Ford Mustang VIN: 1ZVFT84N075298307, registerad to Michael Justin Kennedy.

Any individuals located on this property at the time of the service of this warrant.

Now, therefore, you are hereby authorized to search the subject premises for the property described below, and to seize
such property if found:
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Any evidence of illegal drug sales to include any items and/or materiais used in the manufacturing, packaging or distribution
of illegal drugs to include but not limited to any organic and/or synthetic opiocids, cutting agents, scales, bags, containers and any
other items related to such sales. Any US currency with serial numbers matching Greenville County Drug Enforcement Unit
records and currency or items belleved to be the actual proceeds of lllegal drug sales. Any papers, records, ledgers, or account
records relating to the sale of illegal drugs/proceeds of illegal drug sales and any electronic devices that could be used to store
such data. Any electronic communication devices belonging to Michae! Kennedy found on/in his person, vehicle, or residence(s).

This Search Warrant shall not be valid for more than ten days from the date of issuance.

A written inventory of all property seized pursuant to this Search Warrant shall be made to

this residence and/or Michael Kennedy

within ten days from the date of this warrant, such inventory to be signed by the officer executing this warrant, and a copy
of such inventory shall be furnished to the person whose premises are searched if demand for such copy is made.

A copy of this Search Warrant shali be delivered to the person in charge of the premises searched at the time of such
search if practicable, and, If not, to such person as soon thereafter as is practicabie; in the event the identity of the person

in charge is not known or if such person cannot be found after reasonable diligence in attempting to locate the person, a copy
shall be attached to a prominent place on such premises.

GREENVILLE 5. /ul/
September 24, 20 20 m s}

Signbure &Judge & C } gw
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RETURN
I received the attached Search Warrant Oc‘f OHer ‘?/H 20 IO . and have executed it as follows:
N .
Oectobe— 2 1 RO a - o'clock __1‘_9__ M, | searched

{the person) described in the warrant and {the premises)

Veft a copy of the warrant with

Name of person searched or at the place of search” with.

Together with a receipt for the items seized.

The followmg is an inventory of property taken pursuant to the warrant
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LM Feath/ TH/ Petonth

This inventory was made In the presence of

AND
t swear that this Inventory Is a true and detalled account of ail the property taken by me on the warrant

SWORN to before me this W

day of 20
&ﬁignatme of Officer Executing Warrant)

(LS)

Signature of Judge
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RETURN
ne
| received the attached Search Warrant Oc"’:? Pa- Q 20 20 , and have executed it as follows:
on _Qetvbe, X7 0 0 a & o'dock &2 ) searched

{the persan) described in the warrant and {the premises)

Ileft a copy of the warrant with Owner/Occupant/Resident

Name of person searched or at the place of search® with.
Together with a receipt for the items seized.

4 Mcﬁgg ﬁfﬁ?ﬁsmg is an inventary of property taken pursuant to the warrant:
T i~ bath ol Ammo ~Room I - mpore
T 1LA7~ Unlimfted (wendok tn~d  TomptbepAmt— Roonl -yhog g

T3 powe fmsh Cand 40X 4200 pia3 8LO05 ~ Rogm L sppore
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Tv29- 4 -

This inventory was made in the presence of E 70 th_m _/_\A 7 #lie ,,ﬁmm
iy 4 L

I swear that this inventory {5 a true and detalled account of all the property taken by me on the warrant.

AND

SWORN to befare me this 2‘\'2

dayof _(Ockibey 20 % T
Signature of Officer Executing Warrant)
C/’\’\N\A@Q — s)

{gnature of judge

a4
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STATE'S

EXHIBIT

Greenville County Department of Public Safety

4 McGee Street
Greenville SC 29601

CHAIN OF CUSTODY REPORT

CASE #: 012020156203

IMPOUNDING COFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GS0O Case Type:NARCOTICS INVESTIGATION

SUBMITTING OFFICER: SEALED: Yes
INVESTIGATING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO SUBMITTED Af.Locker 002
DATE & TIME IMPOUNDED:10/2/2020 1400 SUSPECT:KENNEDY MICHAEL

IMPOUND ADDRESS: 11 CENTURY DR APT 1304 GVILLE SC

AT ERCHE) OO A

1479187

ltem #TW26 BAG W/ CRYSTAL SUBSTANCE
SUBSTANCE 56.9 GRAM

CRYSTAL

Item moved to this Location
GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

Date/Time
10752020 1:32:42PM

Logged in User
Kathy Lance

10/6/2020 3:08:42PM

Kathy Lance

COUNTYICITY STAGING DRAWER

10/6/2020 10:50:35AM

Kathy Lance

50 HARD DRUGS (STAGING LAB)

10/13/2020 3:55:40PM

TAMMY MICNHIMER

COLLINS, SEAN F. - 8009 DPS

A oo

COLLINS 8008
GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

DRUG ANALYSIS -

10/20/2020 8:45:49AM Kathy Lance

10/23/2020 3:30:23PM Kathy Lance VAULT-FLOOR

End Chain of Custody for Item with Barcade #: 1479187 related fo Case # 012020156203

NOTES:

Printed from EvidenceOnQ 07/26/2022 Page 22 of 35
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Greenville County Department of Public Safety

4 McGee Street
Greenville SC 29601

CHAIN OF CUSTODY REPORT

CASE #: 012020156203
IMPOUNDING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSQ Case Type:NARCOTICS INVESTIGATION
SUBMITTING OFFICER; SEALED: Yes
INVESTIGATING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSQ SUBMITTED At:Locker 002
DATE & TIME IMPOUNDED:10/2/2020 1400 SUSPECT:KENNEDY MICHAEL
IMPOUND ADDRESS: 11 CENTURY DR APT 1304 GVILLE SC

(NNAACIANMAA - vom #Twer BAG w BROWN POWDER  POWDER
1470188 SUBSTANCE 6.7 GRAM

DateiTime Logged in User item moved to this Location
10/5/2020 1:33.01PM Kathy Lance GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

10/5/2020 3:08:42PM Kathy Lance COUNTY/CITY STAGING DRAWER

10/6/2020 10:50:35AM Kathy Lance S0 HARD DRUGS (STAGING LAB)

10/13/2020 3:55:41PM TAMMY MICNHIMER ~ COLLINS, SEAN F. - 8009 DPS

D oo
DRUG ANALYSIS -

COLLINS 8009
10/20/2020 8:45:49AM Kathy Lance GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE
10/23/2020 3:30:23PM Kathy Lance VAULT-FLOOR
End Chain of Custady for ltem with Barcode #: 1479188 relafed to Case # 012020156203
§

NOTES:

Printed from EvidenceOnQ 07/26/2022 Page 23 of 35



Greenville County Department of Public Safety

4 McGee Street
Greenville SC 29601

CHAIN OF CUSTODY REPORT

CASE#: 012020156203

IMPOUNDING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO Case Type:NARCOTICS INVESTIGATION

SUBMITTING OFFICER: SEALED: Yes
INVESTIGATING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO SUBMITTED At:Locker 002
DATE & TIME IMPOUNDED:10/2/2020 1400 SUSPECT:KENNEDY MICHAEL

IMPOUND ADDRESS: 11 CENTURY DR APT 1304 GVILLE SC

IR SR AR O A

1479172

item #:TWT7 BAG W/ CRYSTAL SUBSTANCE
SUBSTANCE 28 GRAM

CRYSTAL

Date/Time
10752020 1:19:51PM

Itern moved to this Location
GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

Logged in User
Kathy Lance

10/5/2020 3:08:42PM

Kathy Lance

COUNTY/CITY STAGING DRAWER

10/6/2020 10:50:35AM

Kathy Lance

SO HARD DRUGS (STAGING LAB)

10/13/2020 3:55:33PM

TAMMY MICNHIMER

COLLINS, SEAN F. - B009 DPS

SIS e

COLLINS 8009
GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

DRUG ANALYSIS -

10/20/2020 B:45:49AM Kathy Lance

10/23/2020 3:30:23PM Kathy Lance VAULT-FLOCR

End Chain of Custody for ltem with Barcods #: 1479172 related to Case # (012020156203

NOTES:

Printed from EvidenceOnQ 07/26/2022 Page 7 of 35
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Greenville County Department of Public Safety

4 McGee Street
Greenville SC 29601

CHAIN OF CUSTODY REPORT

IMPOUNDING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO

SUBMITTING OFFICER:

INVESTIGATING OFFICER; WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO

DATE & TIME IMPCUNDED:10/2/2020 1400

IMPOUND ADDRESS: 11 CENTURY DR APT 1304 GVILLE SC

CASE #: 012020156203

Case Type:NARCOTICS INVESTIGATION
SEALED: Yes

SUBMITTED At:.Locker 002
SUSPECT:KENNEDY MICHAEL

VRO OO RS A

1479173

item #:TW8 BAG W/ WHITE POWDER PCWDER
SUBSTANCE 262.3 GRAM

DateiTime

Logged in User

Item moved to this Location

-10/5/2020 1:20:11PM

Kathy Lance

GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

10/5/2020 3:08:42PM

Kathy Lance

COUNTY/CITY STAGING DRAWER

10/6/2020 10;50:35AM

Kathy Lance

80 HARD DRUGS (STAGING LAB)

10/13/2020 3:55:34PM

DRUG ANALYSIS -

TAMMY MICNHIMER

COLLINS, SEAN F. - 8009 DPS

I D Ceee
COLLINS 8009

10/20/2020 8:45:49AM

Kathy Lance

GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE

10/23/2020 3:30:23PM

Kathy Lance

VAULT-FLCOR

End Chain of Custody for ltem with Barcode #: 1479173 related fo Case # 012020156203

NOTES:

Printed from EvidenceOnQ 07/26/2022

Page 8 of 35



Greenville County Department of Public Safety

4 McGee Street
Greenville SC 29601

CHAIN OF CUSTODY REPORT

CASE # 012020156203

IMPOUNDING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO Case Type:NARCOTICS INVESTIGATION
SUBMITTING OFFICER: SEALED: Yes
INVESTIGATING OFFICER: WORKMAN, TYLER - 1534 GSO SUBMITTED At:Locker 002
DATE & TIME IMPOUNDED:10/2/2020 1400 SUSPECT:KENNEDY MICHAEL
IMPOUND ADDRESS: 11 CENTURY DR APT 1304 GVILLE SC
[[SETIEINCTEOTENRIEAD - tem#Twoe BAG W GRAY POWDER ~ POWDER
1478174 SUBSTANGE 22.6 GRAM
Date/Time Logged in User Iter moved to this Location
10/5/2020 1:20:31PM Kathy Lance GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENGCE INTAKE
10/5/2020 3:08:42PM Kathy Lance COUNTY/CITY STAGING DRAWER
10/6/2020 10:50:35AM Kathy Lance SO HARD DRUGS (STAGING LAB})

10/13/2020 3:55:35PM TAMMY MICNHIMER COLLINS, SEAN F. - 8009 DPS
S B o

DRUG ANALYSIS -

COLLINS 8009
10/20/2020 8:45:49AM Kathy Lance GREENVILLE DPS EVIDENCE INTAKE
10/23/2020 3:30:23PM Kathy Lance VAULT-FLOOR

End Chain of Custody for ltem with Barcode #: 1479174 related to Case # 012020156203

NOTES:

Printed from EvidenceOnQ  07/26/2022 Page 9 of 35




Agency: Greenville Sheriff's Office
Apency Case #: 01-2020-156203

O Tu=p.: &

County of Greenville

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY - FORENSIC DIVISION

DRUG ANALYSIS REPORT

Drug Lab #: G20-3311
DPS Case #:
Incident Date: 10/02/2020

Officer: Amendolare, W.
Received From: Property & Evidence

Received Date; 10/13/2020

This is an gfficial report of the Greenville County Department of Public Safety Crime Laboratory and is to be used in connection with
an affical criminal investigation. These examinations were conducted under your assurance that no examinations of evidence

submitted in this case have been or will be conducted by any other laboratory or agency.
John Vandermosten, Assistant County Administrator

Department of Public Safety

ITEMS OF EVIDENCE:

Item TW10: Bag containing chunks of powder substance
Results:  No controlled substance detected

Item TW13: Glove conlaining rock substance
Results: Mo controlled substance detected

Item TW12: Bag containing tablet substance
Resulls:  No controlied substance detected

Item TW13; Bag containing plant material
Results: Marijuana (C-I)} found 18.60 grams
Total Delta-9 Tetrahydrocannabinol {THC) eoncentration is greater than 1.00%

Item: TW14: Pouch

containing plant matetial

Results: Marijuana (C-1) found 3.47 grams

Total Delta-9 Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) coneentration is greater than 1.00%

Item TW24: Bag containing plant material
Results:  Marijuana (C-T) found 9.00 grams

Total Deita-9 Tetrahydrocannabinol {THC) concentraticn is greater than 1.00%

Item TW25: Bag containing chunks of powder substance

Resulis;

Report Date: 10/21/2020
Report #: 2

No controlled substance detected

Law Enforcement Center - 4 McGee Street - Greenville, SC 29601 - TeIephc;nr. (864) 467-5204 (BM

J cag

N

ki
Lo

FA RSN

Poge 1 of 2

02820
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Drug Lab #: G20-3311 Agency Case #: 01-2020-156203

Item TW26: Bag containing crystal substance
Results: Methamphetamine (C-II) found 55.55 grams

Ttem TW27: Bag containing chunks of powder substance
Results: Heroin (C-I) found 5.75 grams

Ttem TW30: Foil and paper wrapper with crystal substance
Resulls: Methamphetamine (C-II) found 0.53 grams

Item TW7: Bag containing crystat substance
Resulls: Methamphetamine (C-II} found 21.71 grams

Item TWS: Bag containing powder substance
Results: Carfentanil (C-IT) found 254.67 grams

~3
~
o
Item TW9: Bag containing powder substance ‘_‘;’
Results: Heroin (C-T) found 21.73 grams £
]
~
I am: a Criminalist employed by Greenville County to perform chemical and physical examinations on evidence submitted by law “_‘f
enforcement agencies in criminal cases, and to testify in couris of recard in the state of South Carolina on such examinations. L
“-CS
Seen F, Collins
[0}
o
5 f
Y
o
b3
i
"+ Report Date: 10/21/2020 . Page 2 of 2
b p . &
o Report #:2
o Law Enforcement Center - 4 McGee Street - Greenville, SC 20601 - Telephone (864) 467-5204 WA  IO2%- 20
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
) POSS OF A WEAPON DURING THE COMMISSION OF A
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) VIOLENT CRIME
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on - JUN 01 2021 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:
That MICHAEL JUSTIN KENNEDY did in Greenville County, on or about the 2nd day of October, 2020,
possess or visibly display a FN 9mm Handgun (SN:K$0069703) during the commission or attempted commission

of a violent crime, to wit: Trafficking Heroin. This is in violation of §16-23-490 of the South Carolina Code

Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

e PP

SOLICITOR BAR # 101312
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“ STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF Greenville

STATE

VS INDICTMENT/CASE#. __ 2021G52300619

Michael Justin Kennedy AW 2020A2330209758

AKA; Date of Offense; 10/2/2020
S.C.Code§ : 16-23-0490
Race: BLACK __ Sex M__ Age: 29 CDRCode # 0549

DOB: F__ss#
Address: HlCentury Drive Apt
City,State, Zip:  Greenville, SC 29607
DL#: ﬁ SID#:

*CDL Yes [] No [JCMV Yes [[] No [] Hazmat Yes (] No[]

SENTENCE SHEET

—— e ot e Tt St Mo Mt it om g e Yo S’

in disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was ﬁ CONVICTED OF or [ JPLEADS
TO: Weapons / Poss. Weapon During Violent Cr

in violation of § 16-23-0490 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549 «~

KINON-VIOLENT CIVIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [ Mandatory GPS (] §17-25-45

( CSC wirninor 1st or CSC w/minor 372

- . Lesser Included Defendant Waives
he ch : -
The charge is: [X] As Indicted, [] Offense, U Presentment to Grand Jury. . (def'siniti!

The pleais: [] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negofiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the
ATTEST:

0370 -3
~Grounsell, cn@ SC Bar# Defendant DA MIEEIIOF N SC
Crimiind
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the Pg State Department of CorméiRSReY fr[lqefsmwtbetenﬂon Cenra.
for a determinate term of S’ daye#morrthsi@T ime-Sarvett [ Youthful Offender Act not to exceed year.
and/or to pay a fine of $ provided that upon the service of days/months/years/Time Served and or payment
of $ . plus costs and assessments as applicable; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthsfyears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

The sentence shall run
[d CONCURRENT or (] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ny:.cd.0n 3 /2

[\ The Defendant is to be given credit for fime served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCC~
nb_%g /rentits

[J To include time spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.
(J The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is untawful for a person convicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or ,,
{Domestic Viclence } to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.

O
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville
STATE A INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2021GS2300620

Michael Justin Kennedy ANVE  2020/2350208758

AKA: Date of Offense:; 10/2/2020

, S.C.Code§ : 44-53-0375(C)2)
Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: 29 CDR Code # 0392
DOB. FSS'g -
Address: lliCentury Drive Apt SENTENCE SHEET
City, St

ate, Zip: Greenville, SC 29607
SR ——

*CDL Yes [ ] No[[JCMV Yes [] No [ ] Hazmat Yes []] No[]

P e e

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was ] CONVICTED OF  or [JPLEADS
TO: Drugs/ Trafficking In Ice, Crank, Crack

in violation of  § 44-53-0375(C)(2)( of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code # (392

[ INON-VIOLENT XVIOLENT [XJSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [} Mandatory GPS ] §17-25-45

4 ( CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/minor 31
e . L Includ fendant Wai
The hargeis:. [X] /s Indicted, [[] O?::;encu L L] gl'eta:;nxent?tlnvgsrand Jury. _ (cefsinitic.

The pleais: [] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, [[] Recommendation by ti... =
ATTEST:

W 100370 TS

~"Grounsell, Clafk/ SC Bar# Defendant SHANKLE—SREAN SC 2=

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the [4 State Department of CorréifSRYY fc[:_'PEfSUﬂ%?batention Cenier,
for a determinate term of 2 { daystmnnths/y@ﬂ’ ima-Served [ ] Youthful Offender Act not to exceed year.

and/or to pay a fine of $
of §

provided that upen the service of days/months/years/Time Served and or paymc:

; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

The sentence shall run 6.0;.
[BCONCURRENTor  [JCONSECUTIVE tosentenceon: * g CoOny:cdieas on Fl31)22

X Thquefendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by =77

frentire~
[0 Toinclude time spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.

[] The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or § 1o-..
(Domestic Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition. .
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
) POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE W/INTENT TO
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) DISTRIBUTE
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on JUND 1201 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:

That MICHAEL JUSTIN KENNEDY did in Greenville County, on or about the 2nd day of October, 2020,
possess with intent to distribute or aid, abet, conspire to possess with the intent to distribute a quantity of a
schedule TI controlled substance, Carfentanil, such possession not having been authorized by law. This is in

violation of §44-53-370 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provide:

R = =

Pl - 7
P 7

e 4 :

~ /C:_— o

SOLICITOR BAR # 101312
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*STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSICM<S

COUNTY OF Greenville

STATE INDICTMENT/CASE#  2021GS2303572

VS.

A/W#:  2020A2330209757

Date of Offense: 10/2/2020
S.C.Code § : 44-53-0370(B)(1)
CDR Code #: 0183

Michael Justin Kennedy

AKA:

Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: 29
bos. F:ss_g —
S:

Addres Century Drive Apt R
City,State, Zip: Greenville, SC 29607
DL#: _h SID#:

*CDL Yes [ ] No[JCMV Yes[] No [ ] Hazmat Yes [] No[]

SENTENCE SHEET

~ ~— ~— ~— — — — — — — — ~— — ~— ~—

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was ﬁ CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
To: Drugs/Mdp, Narcotic Drugs In Sch. I(b)

in violation of § 44-53-0370(B)(1) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0183 -

[XINON-VIOLENT KIVIOLENT  [JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [] Mandatory GPS U §17-25-4¢

( CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/minor 3ra }

o ; Lesser Included Defendant Waives
T : N
he charge is: [X] As Indicted, [] Offense, 0 presentment to Grand Jury. __ (def’sinitials)

The pleais: [] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [X] Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST:

__z280370 REps.

Grounsell, Clffk SC Bar# Defendant SHTRETMERS AN "SC Bar#
JaYW=Io=tVs

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the State Department of CorrM?&ﬂWﬂﬁWbetention Cen

for a determinate term of _’ s__ days#meﬂw@ﬂmeewed [] Youthful Offender Act not to exceed

and/or to pay a fine of $ provided that upon the service of ~ days/months/years/Time Served and o:
of$ ______ ;plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditioi
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

The sentence shall run

Gon
I CONCURRENT or [ ] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ﬁ Cgm, .¥:605 on A"[31j27.

[X The, Defendant js to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC
phi daysimmenths

To include time spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.
[(] The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-¢
(Domestic Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
) TRAFFICKING HEROIN
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on JUN 0 i 209 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their cath:

That MICHAEL JUSTIN KENNEDY did in Greenville County, on or about the 2nd day of October, 2020,
knowingly sell, manufacture, deliver or bring into the State of South Carolina, or did knowingly provide financia!
assistance or otherwise aid, abet, attempt, or conspire to sell, manufacture, deliver or bring into the State or w-
knowingly in actual or constructive possession of 14 grams or more but less than 28 grams or more of Hercer

This is in violation of §44-53-370 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOLICITOR BAR # 101312
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville
STATE vs INDICTMENT/CASE#  2021GS2300539A

AMVE 2021GS2300539A

Date of Offense: 10/2/2020
S.C.Code§ : 44-53-0370(E)(3)(
CDR Code #: 0287

Michael Justin Kennedy

AKA:

Race: BLACK Sex: M Aqge: 29
os. (N soIEEEEEE

Address: Il Century Drive Apt
City,State Zip: Greenville, SC 29607
DL#: SID#:

“COL Yes [] No[JCMV Yes [] No [] Hazmat Yes [[] No[]

SENTENCE SHEET

et e N T e T e i’ T s et e o gt

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was M CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
TO: Drugs / Trafficking in Heroin, morph., etc., 14 g or more, but less than 28 g

in violation of  § 44-53-0370(E)(3)( of the §.C. Code of Laws, beaning COR Code # 0287

[INON-VIOLENT XIVIOLENT  [XJSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [] Mandatory GPS (] §17-25-45

{ CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/minor 3.

- ; Lesser Included Defendant Waives N
The chargs is: [X] As Indicted, [] Offense, O Presentment to Grand Jury. E— AT

The pleais: ] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, [} Recommendation b.
ATTEST:

Grounsell, @k SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the K] State Department of Corrections [J County Detention Ceiii.

for a determinate term of _2 5 daysimentheigard/ Time-Eoned [ Youthful Offender Act not to exceed ye:

and/or to pay a fine of $ provided that upon the service of days/months/years/Time Served and or paymer::

of$ ______ ;plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

The sentence shall run
JICONCURRENT or [JCONSECUTIVE to sentence on: _COfviedimn s 60 ¥ 131]272

i Thegifﬁdant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCI

/rmenihe
[0 Toinclude time spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.
[] The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of §16-25-20 o _
(Domestic Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed
to be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability with the April 15, 2014 order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Revised Order Concerning Personal Identifying Information and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

Respectfully Submitted,

RECEIVED £ athnif sl

Kathrine H. Hudgins
Feb 052024 Appellate Defender
SC Cﬁurt Of Appeals South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense

Division of Appellate Defense
PO Box 11589

Columbia, SC 29211-1589
ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

This 5" day of February, 2024.






RECEIVED

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA Feb 052024

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS SC Court of Appeals

Appeal from Greenville County

Honorable G.D. Morgan, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

THE STATE,

RESPONDENT,

MICHAEL J. KENNEDY,

APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2022-001293

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Rule 262(a)(3) and Rule 262(c)(3), SCACR, the undersigned hereby certifies
a true copy of the Record on Appeal in the above-referenced case has been served upon Ambree
M. Muller, Esquire, at the primary e-mail address listed in the Attorney Information System

(AIS), this 5" day of February, 2024.

Kathlme H. Hudgins
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense

PO Box 11589

Columbia, SC 29211-1589

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT



From: Stock, Chris

To: SC - MULLER AMBREE; Grace Sommer

Cc: Hudgins, Kathrine

Subject: Kennedy, Michael - Record on Appeal V 1, 2 & Proposed Transportation Order - 2022-001293
Date: Monday, February 5, 2024 2:09:08 PM

Attachments: Kennedy, Michael - Record on Appeal - Volume 2 - 2022-001293.pdf

Kennedy, Michael - Record on Appeal - Volume 1 - 2022-001293.pdf
Kennedy, Michael - Proposed Transportation Order - 2022-001293.pdf

Ms. Muller,

Please find attached for service the Record on Appeal and Proposed Transportation Order for
Michael Kennedy’s appeal which will be filed today with the Court of Appeals.

Thank you.

Chris

Chris Stock

Administrative Assistant
Commission on Indigent Defense
Appellate Division

(803) 734-1330
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